
          

 

 

FONTAINBLEAU LAKES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 18, 2022 
6:30 P.M. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 

Miami, FL 33193 

www.fontainbleaulakescdd.org 
786.303.3661 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
 FONTAINBLEAU LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Las Ramblas Clubhouse Conference Room 
9960 NW 10th Terrace 
Miami, Florida 33172 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
April 18, 2022 

6:30 p.m. 
   
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. February 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes………………………………………….......Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Update Regarding Restrictive Covenant – Greenspace Area in Southwest Quadrant of CDD 

H. New Business 

1. Discussion Items Requested by Fontainbleau Lakes Courtyards West Condo (Las Sevillas) 

 Grant of Easement – Fontainbleau West – Tract S – Roadway Ownership 

 FPL Open Space Lighting Project 

 Bench Installation 

 Bike Racks Installation 

 Gate Maintenance Agreement 

 Virtual Guard Gate System 

 Exercise Stations in Open-Space Tracts 

 Playground Project Status – KaBOOM!  

2. Consider Resolution No. 2022-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget……..Page 6 

I. Administrative & Operational Matter  

1. Discussion Regarding General Election Qualifying Period 

J. Board Members & Staff Closing Comments 

K. Adjourn 

 



Page 1



FONTAINBLEAU LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 21, 2022 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Nancy Nguyen called the February 21, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the 
Fontainbleau Lakes Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Las 
Ramblas Clubhouse Conference Room located at 9960 NW 10th Terrace, Miami, Florida 33172. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Ms. Nguyen presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Miami Daily Business Review on October 6, 2021, as part of the District’s Fiscal 
Year 2021/2022 Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Ms. Nguyen determined that the attendance of Chairman Luis Gonzalez, Vice Chairman Timothy 
Toy and Supervisors Humberto Jovanovic, Edward Aparicio, and Mayra De Torres constituted a 
quorum and it was in order to proceed with the meeting. 
 
Staff in attendance were: District Managers Nancy Nguyen and Armando Silva (via speaker phone) 
of Special District Services, Inc.; and General Counsel Scott Cochran of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, 
Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
 
Others in attendance were: Javier Tome, Miami, FL; Oscar Galves, Miami, FL; Tati Robertson, 
Miami, FL. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1.  October 18, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  
 

Ms. Nguyen presented the minutes of the October 18, 2021, Regular Board Meeting. There being no 
changes or corrections, a motion was made by Mr. Toy, seconded by Ms. De Torres and passed 
unanimously approving the minutes of the October 18, 2021 Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1. Restrictive Covenant – Greenspace Area in Southwest Quadrant of CDD 
 
Mr. Silva stated that he still has not received a response from the Developers (Shoma Homes) 
attorney. Ms. De Torres suggested that Miami-Dade County Division of Environmental Resources 
Management (DERM) be contacted so they may provide clarification on which area of the open tract 

Page 2



have been cleaned. It was also suggested that mass e-mails be sent to Shoma Homes. The Board of 
Supervisors expressed their desire to fill in the testing holes that are still present in the open tracts. 
Mr. Silva acknowledged the Board’s recommendation and stated that he will provide additional 
information regarding this item at a future meeting.   
 

3.  Discussion Regarding Solar Lighting – Open-Space Tract Pathways 
 
Mr. Silva reminded the Board that during the last meeting, the Board requested that he seek areas in 
within Las Sevillas and Las Ramblas that would be adequate for a Pilot Project. Mr. Silva explained 
that he has been in communication with Ms. Tati Robertson, the Las Sevillas Manager, regarding the 
possibility of having Florida Power and Light (FPL) provide the District with a the light poles and 
electrical services for a fee. Mr. Silva stated that Ms. Nguyen has this process at one of her District’s 
and requested that she provide the Board with an explanation of her experience. Ms. Nguyen stated 
that her District’s Board of Supervisors elected to enter into an LED Lighting Agreement with FPL 
for fifty-eight light poles. She stated that the annual cost for the use of the light poles and electrical 
costs are approximately $206 per year per light pole (approximately $17.25 per month per light pole). 
Ms. Nguyen added that this fee also covers the maintenance of the light poles. Mr. Silva explained 
that he tried to contact the representative of FPL who worked with Ms. Nguyen, but he was 
unavailable. A discussion ensued, after which, the Board requested that Mr. Silva try to contact the 
FPL representative again and attain more information regarding this process. Mr. Silva acknowledged 
the Board’s request.  

 
H. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Budget Workshop 
 
This discussion item was tabled.  
 

2. Discussion Items Requested by Fontainbleau Lakes Courtyards West Condo (Las 
Sevillas) 

 
Ms. Nguyen presented the Board with a list of agenda items from Ms. Robertson.  
 

 Security Company Payment: Mr. Silva informed the Board that the Las Sevillas HOA has 
requested to have the security services contract transferred to the District so that the 
community could save on the taxes since the District is tax-exempt. A discussion ensued, after 
which the Board consensus was to have the District pay for the security roving services for 
Las Sevillas and Las Ramblas. Each community can engage different companies and the 
District will reimburse the management companies for the respective security services 
contractor.  

 Benches and Lighting Poles for Las Sevillas Roundabout: Ms. Robertson request that the 
Board consider adding benches and light poles for the public park areas in Las Sevillas. Mr. 
Silva stated he would include light poles for the Las Sevillas roundabout as part of the FPL 
additional light pole inquiry. More information on this item will be provided at a future 
meeting.  

 Bike Racks for Each Tower: Mr. Silva explained that the District does not own the tracts 
where the buildings are located. Ms. Robertson stated that instead, the bike racks would be 
located next to the benches that were installed by the District. Mr. Silva stated that he would 
look into the cost of the bike racks and he would inform the Board during the next Board 
meeting.  

Page 3



 Trees: Ms. Robertson requested to have trees installed in the open-space tracts of the District. 
Ms. De Torres informed Mr. Robertson that Miami-Dade County has an Adopt-a-Tree 
Program where Miami-Dade County donates a native tree to Miami-Dade County residents, 
as requested. The program usually takes place in August and the HOA can request multiple 
trees by composing a letter to Miami-Dade County on behalf of the residents.  

 Las Sevillas Entrance Upgrades: Ms. Robertson has requested that the District look into 
possible ways of enhancing the security in the main entrance as the community. Mr. Silva 
stated that the roadways are public so access to the public cannot be denied and that is the 
reason that there is a gate system that allows access to all members of the public. Ms. 
Robertson requested that the District look into possibly installing a virtual security guard 
system to assist with monitoring/documenting who enters/exits the community. Mr. Silva 
stated that he would obtain more information regarding this virtual security gate system and 
he would provide the information at an upcoming meeting.  

 Manhole Cover Replacements: Mr. Aparicio clarified that the concern in question is not the 
manholes in the street but the electrical valve boxes located in the open-space tracts near the 
pedestrian pathways. An inspection by the Field Operations team will be performed and this 
concern will be addressed.  

 Playground Project: Mr. Silva stated that the KaBoom! grant program is currently searching 
for sponsors and that the District is at the top of their list for when financial assistance is 
obtained.  

 Signpost Painting:  An inspection by the Field Operations team will be performed and the 
signpost will be painted, as requested.  

 Greenspace Areas: this item was previously addressed. 
 Plants/Beautification: Ms. Robertson requested that the District look into installing 

flowering plants throughout some of the District owned medians to assist with the 
beautification of the area. Mr. Silva stated that he will make the Field Operations team aware 
of this so that they could work with the landscaper on this.  

 Sinkholes: Mr. Silva clarified that this item pertain to the test-hole sites in the open-space 
tracts throughout the District. Mr. Silva stated that he will reach out to the County for 
clarification on this.   

 Green Area Huts/Parties: Ms. Robertson stated that the HOA Board is requesting to have a 
sheltered area installed in the open-space tracts so that the residents can gather and have 
parties/events. The District can charge a rental fee to assist with the expenses associated with 
the maintenance of the structure. Mr. Silva stated that this is an item that the District Board 
looked into in the past and it’s something that will be looked into further in the future as there 
more pressing projects for the District to address.  

 Electricity Pull Box: this item was previously addressed.  
 Security Gate: this item was previously addressed.   

 
3. Consider Agreement for Aquatics Maintenance Services – Deangelo Contracting 

Services 
Mr. Silva explained that Aquagenix was purchased by Deangelo Contracting Services. He further 
explained that there has been no change to the monthly services costs and it would be in order to 
update the Aquatics Maintenance Agreement (the “Agreement”) to reflect the contractor name. Mr. 
Silva added that the Agreement was prepared by District Counsel. Mr. Cochran explained that he has 
made some minor changes to the Agreement and recommends its adoption.  
 

Page 4



A motion was made by Mr. Toy, seconded by Mr. Aparicio and unanimously passed approving the 
Agreement for Aquatic Maintenance Services between Fontainbleau Lakes Community Development 
District and Deangelo Contracting Services, LLC.    
 

4. Discussion Regarding EV Charging Stations 
 
The Board discussed the prospect of installing EV charging stations throughout the District. The 
Board consensus was that this would be a costly expense for the District to incur and only a few 
residents will be able to take advantage of the benefit. Additionally, the Board was reminded that all 
members of the public would be able to use these EV charging stations. The Board concluded that 
they would not like to proceed with this idea at the moment.  
 

5. Staff Report, as Required  
 
There was not staff report at this time.  
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE & OPERATIONAL MATTERS 

1. Staff Report, as Required 
 
There was not staff report at this time.  
 
J. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
There was no Board Member or Staff closing comments.  
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. De Torres, 
seconded by Mr. Toy and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 8:26 p.m. 
 
 
 ________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary                          Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 5



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
FONTAINBLEAU LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET AND NON-AD VALOREM 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Fontainbleau Lakes Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, to 
approve a Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE FONTAINBLEAU LAKES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for June 20, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in the 
Las Ramblas Clubhouse Conference Room located at 9960 NW 10th Terrace, Miami, Florida 
33172, for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 18th day of April, 2022. 
 

 
ATTEST: FONTAINBLEAU LAKES 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson 

Page 6



    Fontainbleau Lakes
 Community Development District

    Proposed Budget For
    Fiscal Year 2022/2023

    October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14


	Fontainbleau Lakes Community Development District - April 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	February 21, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget




